2002

# Walter John Horton v. Tamriko Khvtisiashvili : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

### **STATEMENT OF THE CASE**

1).            Nature of the case        This case involves a custody dispute between parties who were in a relationship since 1993. The Appellee was at the time a foreign exchange student from Russia and the Republic of Georgia. Over the insueing months the relationship developed marriage was brought up. The Appellant brought up the age difference between the parties and was told by the Appellee that in her country she would be getting married right now. That the Appellee's grandfather was twice the age of her grandmother and that Appellee's mother was ten years older than her father.

In December of 1993 Appellant went to Russia to meet Appellee's family and ask about marriage. A few days prior to leaving for Russia the Appellant meet in passing, Roy Jesperson who at that time was the Appellee's sponsor as an exchange student. Mr. Jesperson asked the Appellant "how do you know she is not marring you to get into the country." Upon arriving in Russia the Appellant asked the Appellee about what Mr. Jesperson had said and the Appellee laughed and said

Ch. 13, Rule 1.2 (a)	Utah Rules of Judicial Admins.	pg. 6
Rule 4-911,2 (a), (c)	Utah Rules of Judicial Admins.	pg. 40,47
Rule 102	Utah Rules of Evidence	pg 6,36,44
Rule 502 4, B, iii	Utah Rules of Evidence	pg 37
Statute 133	75 AM JUR 2d	pg 5,42
Article VI Rule 102	Federal Rules of Evidence	pg 6,44

### **STATEMENT OF THE CASE**

1).           Nature of the case      This case involves a custody dispute between parties who were in a relationship since 1993. The Appellee was at the time a foreign exchange student from Russia and the Republic of Georgia. Over the insueing months the relationship developed marriage was brought up. The Appellant brought up the age difference between the parties and was told by the Appellee that in her country she would be getting married right now. That the Appellee's grandfather was twice the age of her grandmother and that Appellee's mother was ten years older than her father.

In December of 1993 Appellant went to Russia to meet Appellee's family and ask about marriage. A few days prior to leaving for Russia the Appellant meet in passing, Roy Jesperson who at that time was the Appellee's sponsor as an exchange student. Mr. Jesperson asked the Appellant "how do you know she is not marring you to get into the country." Upon arriving in Russia the Appellant asked the Appellee about what Mr. Jesperson had said and the Appellee laughed and said

it was a joke between them.

The Appellant and Appellee exchanged wedding rings in Russia and in March of 1994 returned together to the United States. On June 9th, 1994 Appellant and Appellee were married in Salt Lake City, Utah.

In October 1994 the Appellant had life threatening surgery and required the couple to move to California which they did after the birth of their daughter in January 1995. In December of 1994 the Appellee's mother Tanja came to stay the couple for three months and also made the move to California. Appellant required a second surgery which was had at the end of January 1995.

The couple lived in California near the Appellants mother from Jan. 1995 to Sept. 1995. In June of 1995 Appellee no longer nursing the child, wanted to do something and got a job in California.

All monies which the Appellee made was her money to use and spend how she liked. The Appellant was responsible for all family expenses.

In Sept. of 1995 the couple returned to Salt Lake City and stayed with a mutual friend until they found an apartment. In Oct. 1995 the family moved into a small apartment in Salt Lake City. The family consisted of Appellant and Appellee their daughter and the Appellee's mother. In late Nov. 1995 the Appellant left to go to California for work and returned just before Christmas 1995.

The day before the Appellant's return to Salt Lake City, the Appellee's mother moved out stating "she was having a nervous



breakdown caring for our 11 month old child all the time." Tamriko was away most of the time, with friends and left the child in the care of her mother. Upon the Appellants return the Appellee's schedule did not change and the Appellant from that day forward was the primary care giver for our child.

The relationship between the Appellant and the Appellee was not good. The Appellant found a journal belonging to the Appellee and read it for the purpose of understanding why his relationship with the Appellee was so bad. The journal revealed that the Appellee was having extra marital affairs with men she was acquainting herself with, and dated back to April of 1994.

The Appellant confronted the Appellee on this discovery of journal entries and the Appellee charged the Appellant and began hitting and pulling Appellant's hair. The Appellant had to jump out the second floor window of the apartment to escape the attack. The Appellee than went to stay with her mother.

Shortly thereafter, Appellant asked the Appellee to work things out, Appellee wanted some time alone. The Appellant and there child went to stay with family in California. Appellant and the child moved out of the apartment and the Appellee moved back in. The last time the Appellant and the child resided with the Appellee was middle February 1996 and to that point Appellant was responsible for all expenses.

While in California the Appellant read a journal of the Appellee's which stated;

The Appellee writes "I ain't in love with Walter. As always in my life, right now I have to make a lot of choices- and again and again and again Of course probably, the most clever thing for me to do would be to go back to the USA with Walter . For there this way, I can get education I want to get, work, hobbies and so on. All this will be much easier to get being next to Walter, for I know he will help me as much as he can." (rec.236-256)

In June of 1996 the Appellant confronted the Appellee on the discovery while in California. Shortly thereafter, the Appellee telephoned the Appellant and said "if you do not help me with my immigration I will fight you for custody of our daughter."

In July 1996 the Appellant returned to Salt Lake City with their daughter. After additional physical and verbal attacks by the Appellee, toward the Appellant, a Protective Order was filed against the Appellee. Custody of their daughter was given to the Appellant as well as child support order to be determined at trial, this was agreed to by the Appellee and granted by the Third District Court,Ut., case# 960906856 SA, filed Nov. 5th 1996 (attachment # 1 ).

Appellee writes "I am with Dagny all day...I want to just run away to N.Y. (rec 236-256).

Over the next 9 months the Appellee made no attempts to see their child. When the Appellant and the child were out and happened to see the Appellee, the Appellant would stop so that the child could see her

mother. There were a number of times when the Appellant would take the child to the Appellee's place of work so that the child could see her mother.

September through November of 1997 the Appellee called to see her daughter a couple of times a month and on a couple of those occasions Appellant assisted Appellee with transportation.

On one of the visits our daughter came home and asked Appellant why mommy says that daddy is a bad guy. After hearing this Appellant told Appellee that she should not be saying this to our daughter.

Shortly thereafter our child came home after a visit with the Appellee's mother, the Appellee was also there, and the child asked the Appellant

why does nana say that daddy is a bad guy. Again the Appellant telephoned the Appellee this time warned Appellee not to do it again.

In late November of 1997 after a visit with the Appellee the child came home saying that the Appellee had told her not to eat daddy's pepe. The child at this time is only 34 months old. The Appellant has been the only stable figure in the child's life to this point. IN THE CHILDS BEST INTEREST AFTER THESE THREE INCIDENTS THE APPELLANT TOLD THE APPELLEE SHE COULD NOT SEE OUR CHILD ALONE.

At this point, Appellant telephoned his attorney Robert Maeri told him of the situation and to have supervised visitation arranged. This was done by the Appellant on December 02, 1996 after which time Appellant and the child left to California for the Christmas holiday. Mr.

Macri never followed through with his use of the affidavit and supervised visitation was never requested.

Appellant received a call in California by Mr. Macri and was informed that Appellant needed to return as soon as possible.

Prior to this, it was agreed to by the Appellant and the Appellee that the child would be with the Appellant for the December Christmas and with the Appellee in January for the Orthodox Christmas.

When Appellant returned from Christmas vacation with the child Appellant was told that I had to give the minor child over to the Appellee which Appellant could not do. Appellant wanted first to go before the Judge.

On January 9th, 1997 Appellant wrote an Affidavit for the courts prior to the scheduled January 12, 1997 hearing date. The Appellant's affidavit of January 9th 1997 nor the Letter to the courts of December 02, 1996 appear on the record? Yet were provided by the Appellant to Appellants attorney Robert Macri.

The Affidavit of the Appellee dated December 22, 1996 is a document which Appellant was never made aware of, and the first time Appellant saw this document was in September of 2002. This document (Affidavit of Appellee 12-22-96, rec. 29-37) is so full of untruths and depicts Appellant as a bad guy.

That Appellant understands better why the trial court and later the custody evaluator has acted the way they have toward Appellant. And justifies the slant which the custody evaluator bases his later

decisions and conclusions and on.

2) Course of Proceedings and Disposition in Lower Court

On October 23, 1996 Petitioner files for annulment of divorce (rec.1-3). Appellant is granted custody of the minor child.

December 22,1997 Appellee files affidavit (rec. 29-37), and obtains temporary restraining.

Jan 12,1998 hearing before Judge Iwasiki, Appellant and Appellee ordered joint custody of child. January 12, 1998 hearing Appellee's attorney Suzanne Marelius spoke before Judge Iwasiki and made her remarks and two points come to mind which were completely and totally untrue;

1) the Appellee was not allowed to speak to her daughter on her birthday. This is not true.!

2) That the Appellant was in possession of Appellee's personal belongings and refused to give them to Appellee. This was not true! Appellant had tried for months prior to this asking the Appellee to come and pick-up these belongings, and reimburse Appellant the \$150 shipping expense from California. The Appellant was told by his attorney Mr. Macri to retain the journals for the future proceedings. The Appellant sees now how his actions in court before Honorable Judge Iwasiki January 12, 1997 were disrespectful of the courts, and apologizes for emotional this outburst. It was spirited by emotion and a reaction to the untrues verbalized to the courts Ms. Marelius.

Macri never followed through with his use of the affidavit and supervised visitation was never requested.

Appellant received a call in California by Mr. Macri and was informed that Appellant needed to return as soon as possible.

Prior to this, it was agreed to by the Appellant and the Appellee that the child would be with the Appellant for the December Christmas and with the Appellee in January for the Orthodox Christmas.

When Appellant returned from Christmas vacation with the child Appellant was told that I had to give the minor child over to the Appellee which Appellant could not do. Appellant wanted first to go before the Judge.

On January 9th, 1997 Appellant wrote an Affidavit for the courts prior to the scheduled January 12, 1997 hearing date. The Appellant's affidavit of January 9th 1997 nor the Letter to the courts of December 02, 1996 appear on the record? Yet were provided by the Appellant to Appellants attorney Robert Macri.

The Affidavit of the Appellee dated December 22, 1996 is a document which Appellant was never made aware of, and the first time Appellant saw this document was in September of 2002. This document (Affidavit of Appellee 12-22-96, rec. 29-37) is so full of untruths and depicts Appellant as a bad guy.

That Appellant understands better why the trial court and later the custody evaluator has acted the way they have toward Appellant. And justifies the slant which the custody evaluator bases his later

decisions and conclusions and on.

2) Course of Proceedings and Disposition in Lower Court

On October 23, 1996 Petitioner files for annulment of divorce (rec.1-3). Appellant is granted custody of the minor child.

December 22, 1997 Appellee files affidavit (rec. 29-37), and obtains temporary restraining.

Jan 12, 1998 hearing before Judge Iwasiki, Appellant and Appellee ordered joint custody of child. January 12, 1998 hearing Appellee's attorney Suzanne Marelius spoke before Judge Iwasiki and made her remarks and two points come to mind which were completely and totally untrue;

1) the Appellee was not allowed to speak to her daughter on her birthday. This is not true.!

2) That the Appellant was in possession of Appellee's personal belongings and refused to give them to Appellee. This was not true! Appellant had tried for months prior to this asking the Appellee to come and pick-up these belongings, and reimburse Appellant the \$150 shipping expense from California. The Appellant was told by his attorney Mr. Macri to retain the journals for the future proceedings.

The Appellant sees now how his actions in court before Honorable Judge Iwasaki January 12, 1997 were disrespectful of the courts, and apologizes for emotional this outburst. It was spirited by emotion and a reaction to the untruths verbalized to the courts Ms. Marelius.



Appellants attorney Mr. Macri knew these statements were untrue and yet said nothing. Mr. Macri never informed the Appellant of the affidavit of the Dec. 22, 1997. Mr. Macri informed the Appellant that the judge placed him in contempt and told Appellant he could be put in jail. This scared the Appellant and nothing more was questioned by the Appellant, until this appeal.

The Appellant has never to or in front of the child any made any disparaging remarks about the childs mother. The child has asked "why" about the problems between her mom and dad. Appellant said "mommy did not tell daddy the truth, and that it is only between mommy and daddy". This is the only possible remark which could be construed as disparaging, but it is the truth and the only way Appellant could answer his childs question.

This custody arrangement ended on October 26th 2000 in a hearing before Commissioner Bradford.

It should be noted that the Appellant's Attorney Mr. Robert Macri died in March of 2000, he was Appellants only attorney.

MOTION OCTOBER 26, 2000

Hearing October 26, 2000, Appellant before commissioner Bradford asked the court was not knowing why he was there that day, (transcript on motion 10-26-00, pg 1, lines 8-22, attachment # 2 ).

Ms. Marelius "I know Mr. Horton's problem is he probably hasn't received a copy of my motion because the mailing address he gave the court and me is apparently not a good address and I got one pleading



back at least." (see attachment # 2, pg 1, line 25, pg 2, lines 1-6).

**There was no bad address!** The Appellant recited into the record his address, and court records will reflect that this is the same address already in the court record. The same address that Appellant had received the letter from the court notifying him of the hearing Appellant was at this day. There was no bad address!

Ms. Marelius made false statements disparaging the Appellant. Appellant recognizes 17-18 false statements made by the Ms. Marelius, about the Appellant (attachment# 2 , Pg 4, lines 15-25 & Pg. 5, lines 1-25 & Pg. 6, lines 1-10 & Pg. 7 lines 15-19).

What transpired on this day was Appellee being granting of sole custody and a bifurcation of the fault divorce. Both objected to at the time of hearing by Appellant. Appellant brought up to the courts that the Appellant was seeking to have the marriage annulled (transcript on motion, attachment #2 , 10-26-00, pg. 12, lines 5-6).

Appellant did not have the benefit of counsel, and was looking.

The Appellant did not have the benefit of a copy of the motion and was thereby was blind sided by the Appellee's Attorney, in violation of Rule 5 (a) U.R.C.P..

Let it also be noted that these motion or pleadings are not found in the courts record.

Over the ensuing months the child spent so much time with the Appellee's mother that the child's teacher asked the Appellant who in your family speaks another language. This continued and continues to

this day that the child is a good deal of the time in surrogate care. That the Appellant has never, never been called and asked to care of his child.

For the next 18 months a lot of activity took place in this case. Appellant was unaware of most of it. Mr. Macri did not inform the Appellant of the proceedings. Between April thru August 1999, Appellant was in California and was unaware of court filings.

Appellant and Appellee had themselves modified the visitation schedule and the child was in California half of the time with Appellant. Appellee knew of course that Appellant was in California and yet filings continued as Appellee's attorney Ms. Marelius tried to file motions and orders. Why did Appellee not inform Ms. Marelius of Appellants current status.

#### DIVORCE STIPULATION/SETTLEMENT JUNE 29, 2001

The Appellant engaged the services of attorney Martin Tanner by the time of pretrial which Mr. Tanner attended and also represented the Appellant at trial June 29th, 2001, before the Honorable Judge Iwasiki.

Mr. Tanner telephoned the Appellant on or about June 12th 2001 and said he had just gotten the evaluation that he had read the evaluation and said that the Appellee and the Appellant were even except that Appellant was unable to have a home visit with the evaluator and that the Appellee therefore appeared more stable. The Appellant told Mr. Tanner he wanted to go to trial on custody. The Appellant asked about the custody evaluator and Mr. Tanner said he

would have the evaluator at the trial.

June 28th, 2001 Mr. Tanner telephoned Appellant and said he received a fax from Ms. Marelius a finding and fact and conclusions of law and a decree of divorce. Appellant told Mr. Tanner he was going to trial. That Appellant had the evidence for trial. Where Appellant lived ,Where child friends were in the neighborhood. Mr. Tanner said ok, and that they should meet the next morning at 8:30 am, June 29th, 2001.

Mr. Tanner did not show up to his office until 8:55 am and said they would go over it on the walking to the court house. Upon arriving at the court house that Appellants custody evaluator was not present, Mr. Tanner responded he could not be there.

Appellant was taken aback.

Mr. Tanner lead Appellant into a conference room and was followed by Appellant's brother a member of the LDS church with a temple recommend and the Appellant's mother.

Mr. Tanner went over with the Appellant the, findings and fact and conclusion of law. Appellant, Appellant's brother, Appellant's Mother and Mr. Tanner for the next hour worked out stipulations to not have a trial.

Mr. Tanner told the Appellant the importance of the Custody Evaluation and that the judge decides 99% of the time with the Evaluators decision.

Mr Tanner told Appellant he would lose in a trial!

That Appellant would owe \$5000 to \$6000 in attorneys fees for

Appellee. This fact untrue, the finding and fact, state; each party pays own attorneys fees.

The following stipulations were worked out

- 1) Mr. Tanner would guarantee that Appellant would get "FIRST RIGHT OF REFUSAL". That if child's mother could not be with her then the child could come home. Appellant proposed sceneries, example: "when the child is home and her mother has to work past the child's bedtime would child be able to stay home?" and Mr. Tanner responded that the Appellee would pick up the child after school the next day.
- 2) Appellant was told that he would have the child 1/3 of the year under the proposed visitation schedule.
- 3) That the child support arrears would be computed against child support owed to Appellant by Appellee.
- 4) That marital debt was to be dropped
- 5) The Appellant was concerned about future child support that some months Appellant made little money and others more money. That \$800 would be a base and fluctuate with Appellants income. Mr. Tanner lead Appellant to believe that child support was for taking care of health insurance and care of the child.

Appellant strongly objected to marital debts and that while the Appellant and the Appellee were living under the same roof Appellant paid all expenses. The birthing of the child was paid for by Baby your

Baby. Appellant therefore challenges the marital debt. Mr Tanner told Appellant this section would be dropped.

- 6) The Appellant was told by Mr. Tanner that the Judge would not hear evidence and grant an annulment because "he would not make a bastard out of the child". Appellant had a problem with irreconcilable difference and believed it would be adultly for the Appellee had already admitted to that (see attachment #3).

The Appellant, Mr. Tanner D. Troy Horton and Katharine Horton were in the conference room for about an hour several times Mr. Tanner got up to discuss Ms. Marelius stipulations adjustments a number of times.

In the court room before Judge Iwasiki Mr. Tanner addressed the court and refers to the findings and fact and decree of divorce that they "will constitute the settlement agreement with the parties with a couple additions" rec. 362 Pg. 1 lines 21-22).

Mr. Tanner begins with "disparaging remarks" (rec. 362, Pg. 1 line 24).

Note: This stipulation already covered in (rec. 274-284  
Facts and Findings pg 7, #12)

Mr. Tanner and continues with curd side visitation, (rec. 274-484  
Pg. 2 line 1),

Note: This stipulation already exists in writing (rec.274-284  
pg. 8 #12)

Mr. Tanner continues, "OTHER ITEMS"-- (rec. 362, Pg. 2 , line 9).

Mr. Tanner is then cut off mid-sentence by Ms. Marelius.

Ms. Marelius "And I want to add a couple of items". Ms. Marelius reads into the record "address and telephone number" (rec. 362, , Pg. 2 , line 14).

Note: This is already covered (rec.285-294 ,decree of divorce pg. 4 ,K).

Ms. Marelius reads into the record "petitioner is restrained from interfering with the child including school enrollment, health matters, child care and other custodial issues and that just comes right out of the temporary orders"

Note: These were never discussed and no temporary orders were ever discussed in the pretrial conference room.  
Appellant is unaware of what this is.

Ms. Marelius continues "restraint of derogatory, demeaning, negative comments"(rec. 362, Pg. 2 , lines 21-22).

Note: This is already covered (rec.274-284, facts and finding pg. 7 #12)

Ms. Marelius continues "we've also discussed telephone contact" (rec. 362, Pg. 2 , line 23).

Note: This is already covered (rec.285-294, decree of divorce pg. 3 ,L)

Appellants contention is that the stipulations which were read

into the record already existed in writing, within the facts and findings rec.274-284 and the decree of divorce rec.285-294. It makes the Appellant wonder if it were not just for show.

The court returns to Mr. Tanner, Mr Tanner is asked if there is anything further Mr. Tanner answers "NO YOUR HONOR". (rec.362, Pg. 3 lines 16-17).

Mr. Tanners "other items" (rec. 362, Pg. 2 , line 9). never got read into the record and therefore Ms. Marelius did not include them in the final draft of the finds and fact and the decree.

The Judge asks the Appellant " do you under the terms and conditions of this stipulated settlement? (rec. 362 Pg. 4 lines 5-8). Appellant answers "I think I understand them and I'll read through them when they're written up and I think everything has been agreed upon". (rec. #360, Pg. 4 lines 14-16). Appellant says "I'll read through them when they're written up". Nothing that we agreed to in the outer conference room before trial was read into the record. That is why the Appellant answered "when they are written up".

The Appellant relied on his attorney to get these facts into the findings and the decree. Those items which he negotiated in the pretrial conference room.

Is this a stipulated settlement when there are no stipulations? The stipulations which was read into the record already existed in the proposed facts and finding and the decree. Therefore, how can it be a stipulated settlement?

Appellant told his daughter that she is going to still live with her mom. But now if she wanted to come home instead of going to nana's or other babysitters she could. That if mommy is working or can not be with you and you want to come home, you can!

When the child told her mother what she understood about being able to come home, the Appellee called the Appellant. The Appellee said to the Appellant that this is not the case.

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