2003

# Walter John Horton v. Tamrika Khvtisiashvili : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

### **SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS**

I. Petitioner Cannot Argue Abuse of Discretion when the Result was Stipulated.

Since the parties presented a full and complete stipulation to the trial court, the issue of abuse of discretion is moot and irrelevant to these proceedings.

II. Petitioner Cannot Argue the New Issue of Attorney Competence for the First Time on Appeal.

Petitioner argues that his case was mishandled by his own attorneys, specifically, Robert Macri, Martin Tanner and Steven Kuhnhausen. These issues of lack of competence have never been raised before the trial court or in any other earlier proceeding. It is inappropriate to raise new issues at the level of appeal and as such, these arguments are moot and irrelevant.

III. Petitioner has Not Been Denied Due Process of Law.

Petitioner argues that he was denied due process of law in relation to the bifurcation of the divorce from other issues and in the termination of the joint custody status. Despite the fact that these issues were fully resolved by Stipulation at trial, it is clear on the earlier record that these matters were handled with appropriate process. At no time did Petitioner object to the rulings of the Court in a timely manner to preserve these claims. As such, these allegations of error are moot and irrelevant.

IV. Petitioner has Failed to Marshal the Evidence.

A basic requirement on appeal is the Appellant's duty to marshal all evidence in support of the trial court's ruling before setting forth the arguments for appeal. Petitioner has made no effort to marshal evidence in this case, which is fatal to the appeal.

**ARGUMENT**

I. DID COUNSEL FOR THE RESPONDENT OFFER DEROGATORY AND UNTRUE STATEMENTS TO THE TRIAL COURT RESULTING IN PREJUDICE?

Petitioner alleges that statements of counsel were false and resulted in prejudice to him. It is clear that Petitioner is confusing the role of counsel in presenting argument on behalf of a client with the role of a witness making sworn testimony. At no time was counsel a witness in this case. Rather, counsel for Respondent presented argument based on signed affidavits and pleadings under correct legal procedure. Petitioner was represented by counsel through the majority of the six year divorce and is clearly complaining about the outcome of the divorce, rather than any specific legal error. Moreover, there was no testimony at trial since the result was stipulated at the outset. Thus, the allegations made by Petitioner in this brief do not support any claim of trial court error or counsel error worthy of review.

II. DID THE TRIAL COURT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION OR VIOLATE DUE PROCESS IN TERMINATING THE JOINT CUSTODY STATUS OF THE PARTIES?

Petitioner complains about the Court hearing October 26, 2000 where he appeared pro-se and the Commissioner terminated the joint custody status of the parties and awarded to Respondent, sole custody of the minor child. A review of the record shows that there were appropriate pleadings, including an Order to Show Cause, Affidavit and Notice. The presence of Petitioner in Court showed he clearly received notice of the proceedings despite his protest to the contrary. Despite his argument in the Brief to the outcome of this hearing, Petitioner did *not* object to the recommendation of the



Commissioner under the appropriate procedural rule set forth in URCP 4-501. Accordingly, the Order was made final. The record reveals that the Commissioner had ample evidence to terminate the joint custody status including a custody evaluation recommending this result. Petitioner did not raise this issue at the time of trial before Judge Iwasaki, and as such, it is inappropriate to raise such an objection for the first time on appeal. *Coleman v. Stevens*, 2000 UT 98, 17 P.3d 1122.

III. DID THE TRIAL COURT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION OR VIOLATE DUE PROCESS IN BIFURCATING THE DIVORCE?

Petitioner objects to the lack of notice and outcome of the hearing held October 26, 2000 before the Commissioner which is referenced in the previous argument point. He was present that day representing himself pro-se and clearly had notice of the events given his personal appearance. The Court granted the Motion to Bifurcate the proceedings for good cause and again, Petitioner did not object in a timely or appropriate fashion. Because this raised for the first time on appeal, the matter is inappropriate for review. .

IV. DID COUNSEL FOR THE PETITIONER ERR IN HIS REPRESENTATION OF PETITIONER'S CASE?

Petitioner argues that his attorney, Mr. Tanner “beat down” the Petitioner into stipulating and then sets out certain factual findings that he expected. Despite these allegations, no issue is properly presented for review by this Court. It is uncontroverted

that the Supplemental Decree was entered based on the stipulation of counsel and approval of that stipulation in open Court by the parties. Whether Petitioner properly understood or misunderstood the process, it was conducted under all principles of due process and Utah procedural rules. He took the appropriate step of filing a Motion to Set Aside the Supplemental Decree based on his complaints of incompetent representation. These complaints were heard by Commissioner Bradford at a hearing post-divorce and she reviewed the videotape of the stipulation and ordered that an *Amended* Decree be issued. Given this result, Petitioner's complaints have been fully reviewed and handled and do not represent error by the trial court at any level. If Petitioner feels his counsel was inadequate, his remedy is a malpractice action, not to raise this issue on appeal.

V. DID THE TRIAL COURT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION IN REFUSING TO ANNUL THE MARRIAGE OF THE PARTIES?

Petitioner complains that his marriage ended in a divorce rather than an annulment, which was his preference. Petitioner raised this issue before the Commissioner and before Judge Iwasaki at trial. It is also undisputed that the divorce was completed by stipulation where both parties were represented by counsel and were present in person. It is clear at that time that a divorce was granted and not an annulment. It is inappropriate for Mr. Horton to now state that he wants to review the issue of an annulment based on his regrets. He complains that he was denied the right to provide evidence, which is certainly not the case when he stipulated to a result and waived his opportunity to testify at trial.

Given these facts, there was clearly no abuse of discretion by the trial court in awarding a divorce rather than an annulment.

VI. DID COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER MISREPRESENT PETITIONER IN FAILING TO TIMELY FORWARD THE SUPPLEMENTAL DECREE OF DIVORCE?

Petitioner complains that his counsel did not return phone calls and did not timely process materials. All of the factual support for this argument referenced in the brief are not contained in the official record. Rather, they are part of the personal correspondence between attorney and client. It is inappropriate for a reviewing Court to consider such materials. Again, Petitioner's complaints about the outcome have been raised by his Motion to Set Aside the Supplemental Decree and have been fully reviewed. Petitioner's remedy for errors of counsel is to file a malpractice action, not raise this issue on appeal.

VII. DID COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER IMPAIR PETITIONER'S RIGHTS IN FAILING TO CONVINCE THE COURT TO SET ASIDE THE JUDGMENT AGAINST PETITIONER?

Petitioner again alleges malpractice by his counsel. He again relies on telephone calls and correspondence outside of the record, which is inappropriate for consideration by a reviewing Court. The correct remedy is for Petitioner to file a malpractice action and he has failed to do so. As stated previously, the trial court

considered his objections to the Supplemental Decree and these were denied. This issue is not properly before the Court on appeal.

VIII. DID THE TRIAL COURT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION IN NOT GRANTING PETITIONER ATTORNEYS FEES?

The divorce was resolved by Stipulation presented on the record June 29, 2001. Part of that agreement was that neither party would be awarded fees and that each would bear their own costs and fees incurred in the divorce process. As this was part of a stipulated agreement, it is certainly not an abuse of trial court discretion to fail to award fees to either party.

Mr. Horton complains that he incurred fees for filing the Motion to Set Aside the Supplemental Decree, which the Court reviewed as a 60(b) Motion and resulted the December 20, 2001 hearing before Commissioner Bradford. A review of the Order on Motion to Set Aside Supplemental Decree of Divorce shows that the Motion to Set Aside the Decree was *denied*. Mr. Horton was thus not the prevailing party in this action. The Court also specifically addressed the issue of fees arising from that Motion and stated that both parties should bear their own costs and fees. One significant part to the reasoning in that regard is that Mr. Horton came before the Court with unclean hands, having paid \$0.00 in child support since the support obligation was imposed in October 2000. The ruling thus awarded to Respondent, a judgment for support arrears and for \$2,000 in unpaid debt, which Mr. Horton also failed and refused to pay. Given the equitable nature

of such proceedings, the Court's failure to award Mr. Horton fees at that time is supported by sufficient findings and legal conclusions.

IX. THE PETITIONER FAILED TO MARSHAL THE EVIDENCE WHICH IS FATAL TO THE APPEAL AND RESPONDENT SHOULD BE AWARDED HER FEES ON APPEAL.

This Court has stated on many occasions that a critical requirement of appellate advocacy is the duty of the Appellant to marshal the evidence when challenging the trial court's findings of fact. Petitioner herein made no effort to marshal the evidence in this case. Based on Petitioner's complete failure to marshal any evidence, Respondent should be awarded his fees on appeal.

The marshaling requirement has been defined and explained in numerous domestic cases. In the recent case of *Moon v. Moon*, 1999 UT App 973 P.2d 431, the Court found on appeal that Mr. Moon had simply reargued his own evidence and because he failed to marshal the evidence supporting the trial court's findings, the Appellate Court had to assume that the record supported the findings of the trial court. This Court has also held that when a party challenges findings on appeal and fails to marshal the supporting evidence, that the trial court's findings will not be disturbed on appeal. *Rudman v. Rudman*, 1991 UT App 812 P.2d 73, 79. See also *Breinholt v. Breinholt*, 1995 UT App 905 P.2d 877, 882. The marshaling rule was adopted to insure that the Appellate Court would not be put in the position of retrying the case without seeing or hearing the

witnesses. *Nilson v. Nilson*, 1982 UT 652 P.2d 1323, 1324. Given the failure of Petitioner to marshal any evidence whatsoever, it is inconceivable that she should succeed on appeal. On this basis, Respondent respectfully moves this Court for an award of attorneys fees and costs incurred in the appeal, either under Rule 33(a) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure or as to the party prevailing on the appeal pursuant to *Bolliger v. Bolliger*, 2000 UT App 47.

### **CONCLUSION**

The Appeal of Walter Horton should be denied in its entirety. The action is frivolous and not supported in any way by Utah law. There was no basis for the arguments presented and the evidence and law was mischaracterized and misstated. *Eames v. Eames*, 735 P.2d 395 (Utah Ct. App. 1987). Petitioner has entirely failed to marshal the evidence. Petitioner complains about his counsel and raises issues of malpractice for the first time on appeal. His remedy is not to appeal these complaints, rather, he should file a separate malpractice action. He states that he was instructed to do this by the Commissioner, yet he has failed to do so. Those issues are entirely irrelevant to this appeal. Petitioner complains about abuse of discretion by the trial court and Judge Glenn Iwasaki in the areas of not granting an annulment and in terminating joint custody. However, Petitioner waived his right to testify at trial and stipulated to divorce terms. Given this circumstance, he cannot now change his mind and argue that the Court abused discretion when the Court

was not even asked to provide a ruling. Lastly, Petitioner has objected to the Supplemental Decree which was the result of his own stipulation. That objection was heard by Commissioner Bradford who treated it as a Rule 60(b) Motion. Most of these complaints have been fully reviewed in that context and the Motion was denied. Petitioner has thus had a complete opportunity for review at many stages of the process. He has been represented by competent counsel and has refused to take their advice. Petitioner has provided no viable basis for appeal on the record of this case. It is appropriate that the Appeal be denied in all respects. Respondent requests that she be awarded her costs and attorneys fees incurred before the Court of appeals based on the unnecessary, repetitive filings in this matter.